
 
 

November 19, 2007 
 
 
EA 07-279 
 
Mr. David A. Christian 
President and Chief 
  Nuclear Officer 
Innsbrook Technical Center 
5000 Dominion Boulevard 
Glen Allen, VA 23060-6711 
 
SUBJECT: EXERCISE OF DISCRETION, DOMINION ENERGY KEWAUNEE, INC., 
 KEWAUNEE POWER STATION 
 (OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS REPORT 3-2007-008) 
 
Dear Mr. Christian: 
 
This letter refers to an investigation conducted by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission’s (NRC) 
Office of Investigations (OI) at the Dominion Energy Kewaunee, Inc. (DEK) Kewaunee Power 
Station.  The purpose of the investigation was to determine, in part, if a former contract laborer 
with the Atlantic Group (now Day and Zimmerman) was the subject of employment 
discrimination in violation of 10 CFR 50.7, “Employee protection.”  Based on its investigation, OI 
substantiated that the contract laborer was discriminated against by DEK for raising a concern 
regarding a potential lapse in coverage for a tornado watch.  The discriminatory act was the 
contract foreman issuing a written warning to the contract laborer on October 5, 2006. 

 
Based on the staff’s review of the OI investigation, the NRC identified a violation of 10 CFR 50.7 
which was considered for escalated enforcement action in accordance with the NRC 
Enforcement Policy.  The current Enforcement Policy can be found on the NRC’s Web site at 
www.nrc.gov; select About NRC, Organization and Functions, Office of Enforcement, 
About Enforcement, then Enforcement Policy and select (Enforcement Policy).  The staff 
did not find that the actions of the contract foreman were a deliberate effort to violate NRC 
regulations.  Rather, the foreman failed to realize that the question raised by the laborer was a 
protected activity. 
 
Although violations of 10 CFR 50.7 are of concern to the NRC because they create the potential 
for deterring employees from raising safety concerns, the NRC recognizes that DEK identified 
this matter and subsequently took significant action to reverse the discrimination so as to 
maintain a climate where employees feel free to raise safety concerns.  These actions included: 
(1) removing the written warning from the contract laborer’s personnel file; (2) counseling the 
contract foreman; (3) providing training to other Atlantic Group supervisory personnel on safety 
conscious work environment (SCWE); and (4) holding meetings and issuing a memorandum to 
all Atlantic Group employees working at Kewaunee about their company’s policy and program 
regarding avenues available to personnel for raising safety concerns. 
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After careful consideration of all the factors in this case, the NRC decided to refrain from issuing 
a Notice of Violation or a proposed civil penalty after considering the guidance in Section VII.B.5 
of the NRC Enforcement Policy.  Exercising discretion and not taking enforcement in this case is 
appropriate because: (1) the discrimination was not the result of the acts of any individual above 
a first line supervisor; (2) you identified the discriminatory actions without any NRC or 
Department of Labor intervention, and (3) you took prompt, comprehensive and effective 
corrective action to address both the particular situation and the overall work environment for 
raising concerns. 
 
Although the NRC has determined that enforcement action is not warranted in this case, any 
similar violations in the future may result in significant action. 
 
You are not required to respond to this letter; however, if you choose to provide one your 
response should not, to the extent possible, include any personal privacy, proprietary, or 
safeguards information so that it can be made available to the Public without redaction.  In 
accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC’s “Rules of Practice,” a copy of this letter will be 
made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from 
the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web site at 
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
               /RA/ 
 
       Cynthia A. Carpenter, Director 
       Office of Enforcement 
 
Docket No.   50-305 
License No.  DPR-43 
 
 
cc: S. Scace, Site Vice President 

C. Funderburk, Director, Nuclear Licensing 
  and Operations Support 
T. Breene, Manager, Nuclear Licensing 
L. Cuoco, Esq., Senior Counsel 
D. Zellner, Chairman, Town of Carlton 
J. Kitsembel, Public Service Commission of Wisconsin 
State Liaison Officer, State of Wisconsin



D. Christian - 2 - 

 

After careful consideration of all the factors in this case, the NRC decided to refrain from issuing 
a Notice of Violation or a proposed civil penalty after considering the guidance in Section VII.B.5 
of the NRC Enforcement Policy.  Exercising discretion and not taking enforcement in this case is 
appropriate because: (1) the discrimination was not the result of the acts of any individual above 
a first line supervisor; (2) you identified the discriminatory actions without any NRC or 
Department of Labor intervention, and (3) you took prompt, comprehensive and effective 
corrective action to address both the particular situation and the overall work environment for 
raising concerns. 
 
Although the NRC has determined that enforcement action is not warranted in this case, any 
similar violations in the future may result in significant action. 
 
You are not required to respond to this letter; however, if you choose to provide one your 
response should not, to the extent possible, include any personal privacy, proprietary, or 
safeguards information so that it can be made available to the Public without redaction.  In 
accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter will be 
made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from 
the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web site at 
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. 
 
      Sincerely, 
      /RA/ 

Cynthia A. Carpenter, Director 
Office of Enforcement 

Docket No.   50-305 
License No.  DPR-43 
 
cc: S. Scace, Site Vice President 

C. Funderburk, Director, Nuclear Licensing 
  and Operations Support 
T. Breene, Manager, Nuclear Licensing 
L. Cuoco, Esq., Senior Counsel 
D. Zellner, Chairman, Town of Carlton 
J. Kitsembel, Public Service Commission of Wisconsin 
State Liaison Officer, State of Wisconsin 

 
DISTRIBUTION: 
ADAMS (PARS)  OEMAIL   L. Reyes, EDO 
M. Virgilio, DEDMRT  R. Bywater, OEDO  C. Carpenter, OE 
S. Magruder, OE  J. Moore, OGC  B. Jones, OGC 
A. Jones, OGC  M. Ashley, NRR  J. Stang, NRR 
E. Brenner, OPA  G. Caputo, OI   J. Caldwell, RA 
M. Satorius, DRA  V. Mitlying, RIII:PA  J. Heck, RIII 
J. Heller, RIII   J. Cameron, RIII  S. Burton, SRI   
Enforcement Coordinators 
 RI, RII, RIV   ML073231117 
G:\Russ\Cases - Discrimination\Kewaunee - ROI 3-2007-08\Discretion letter-Kewaunee.doc 
 
OFFICE 

 
OE    

 
 

 
OGC 

 
 

 
OE:DD 

 
 

 
OE:D 

 
 

 
NAME 

 
R. Arrighi 

 
B. Jones 

 
S. Magruder 

 
C. Carpenter   

DATE 
 
10/25/07 

 
11/08/07 

 
11/08/07 

 
11/15/07 

  
 OFFICIAL RECORD COPY  



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /PageByPage
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (None)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages false
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth 8
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages false
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth 8
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages false
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages false
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [300 300]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


